VEMBERS

Senat or
Senat or
Senat or
Senat or

VEMBERS

Senat or

ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 8, 2011
8:04 a.m

PRESENT

Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Joe Thomas, Co-Chair
Bettye Davis, Vice Chair
Hol I is French

ABSENT

Gary Stevens

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 107
maki ng special appropriations for new engineering
s for the University of Alaska in Anchorage and

"An Act
bui | di ng
Fai r bank

S."

- MOVED SB 107 OUJT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BILL NO. 6
relating to providing a prekindergarten programw thin a

"An Act
school d

istrict; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD

PRESENTATI ON:  FI SHER REPORT - UNI VERSI TY OF ALASKA

- HEARD
REVI OUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 107

SHORT TITLE. APPROP: UNIV. ENG NEERI NG BUI LDI NGS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) ELLIS

03/ 21/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 21/ 11 (S) EDC, FIN

04/ 06/ 11 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
04/ 06/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

04/ 06/ 11 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

04/ 08/ 11 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- Apri

8, 2011



BILL: SB 6
SHORT Tl TLE: PREKI NDERGARTEN SCHOCL PROGRAMS/ PLANS

SPONSCR(s): SENATOR(s) DAVIS, FRENCH

01/19/11 (S PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/11

01/ 19/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/19/ 11 (S) EDC, FIN

02/ 28/ 11 (9 EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)
02/ 28/ 11 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 14/ 11 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 14/ 11 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 25/ 11 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 25/ 11 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 25/ 11 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

03/ 30/ 11 (9 EDC AT 8: 00 AM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)
03/30/11 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 01/ 11 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
04/ 01/ 11 (S) Heard & Held

04/ 01/ 11 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

04/ 08/ 11 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

THOVAS OBERMEYER, St aff
Senat or Bettye Davis

Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided a summary of changes of
on behalf of the co-sponsor.

version |,

LI LA HOBBS, St aff
Senator Hollis French

Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

fromthe origina

bi |

ELI ZABETH NUDELMAN, Director

School Fi nance

| nt roduced herself to the commttee.

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent ( DEED)

Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:
version |.

Spoke

to the fiscal

VENDY REDMAN, Executive Vice President

Uni versity Rel ations
Uni versity of Al aska

SENATE EDC COW TTEE

note for

Apri

CSSB 6( ),

CSSB 6(

8, 2011



Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Gave a presentation on the Fisher Report for
the University of Al aska.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:04:32 AM

COCHAIR JOE THOVAS called the Senate Education Standing
Committee neeting to order at 8:04 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators French, Davis, Co-Chair Meyer and Co-Chair
Thoneas.

SB 107- APPROP: UNI V. ENG NEERI NG BUI LDI NGS

8:05:32 AM
CO- CHAI R THOVAS announced the considerati on of SB 107.

8: 05: 48 AM
CO- CHAI R THOVAS cl osed public testinony.

8:06: 54 AM

CO- CHAIR MEYER noved to report SB 107 from the commttee wth
i ndi vi dual reconmendations. There being no objections, SB 107
noved fromthe Senate Education Standing Commttee.

SB  6- PREKI NDERGARTEN SCHOOL PROCGRAMS/ PLANS

8:07:28 AM
CO- CHAI R THOMAS announced the consi derati on of SB 6.

8.07:34 AM

CO- CHAIR MEYER noved to adopt the committee substitute (CS) for
SB 6, |abeled 27-LS0058\1 as the working docunent. Hearing no
obj ection, version | was before the conmmttee.

8:08: 00 AM
THOMAS OBERMEYER, Staff to Senator Bettye Davis, co-sponsor of
SB 6, introduced hinself.

LI LA HOBBS, Staff to Senator Hollis French, co-sponsor of SB 6,
i ntroduced hersel f.

MR. OBERMEYER said version | changes the age of the students
enrolled in a public prekindergarten programfrom "4 and 5 years
of age" to "4 years of age". He noted that this version also
provides for the inclusion of the prekindergarten students in
the student count and changes the inclusion of these students

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- April 8, 2011



from"part tinme" to "not nore than a half-tine". He asked if the
committee would Iike himto read the sponsor statenent.

SENATOR DAVI S said the sponsor statenent has already been read.
She asked M. Oberneyer to go through the changes that have been
made to version | in conparison to the original bill.

MR. OBERMEYER said Section 1, subsection (a), on page 1,
describes a prekindergarten program for students four years of
age. He explained that the bill previously had included both
four- and five-year-olds. However, five-year-olds can be
enrolled in a regular kindergarten program

On page 2, Section 3, subsection (b), an exception was renoved
regarding the estinmated count [for the first vyear of the
programj. He explained that the Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opnent (DEED) cannot fund an estimated count. This
change now allows the departnent to make the regular count in
Cctober and will set the dollar amount for those students
enroll ed already for that school year.

Finally, and nost inportantly for the fiscal note, on page 2,
lines 13-16, a student who is enrolled in a prekindergarten
program provided by a district shall be counted as not nore than
hal f-tinme. He explained that previously the bill included the
wording "part-tine"; however, there are a nunber of different
types of "part-tine" students.

8:12:29 AM

SENATOR FRENCH said the previous fiscal note was based on a
cohort of four- and five-year-olds attending prekindergarten
hal f-time, which is what currently occurs with a kindergarten
class. He asked if this is correct.

MR. OBERMEYER replied that, in his understanding, DEED took the
current nunber of five-year-olds currently in kindergarten and
assurmed that all four-year-olds would be noving into that age
group in the next year and included them in the ADM [Average
Daily Menbership] on a full-time basis. This greatly inflated
the previous fiscal note. He added that he has not heard from
the departnment yet since version | had to be adopted before DEED
woul d speak to the fiscal note. However, in his understanding,
this may cut the fiscal note in half.

SENATOR FRENCH said he wll follow up with the departnent. He
asked for confirmation that the nunber of hours per day that a

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- April 8, 2011



child would spend in a prekindergarten program is about half a
day.

MR. OBERMEYER replied yes. He noted that this is a part-tinme and
an optional program

8:14:53 AM

ELI ZABETH NUDELMAN, Director, School Finance, Departnment of
Education and Early Devel opnent (DEED), spoke to the fiscal note
for CSSB 6, version |I. She explained that the departnment used
the kindergarten cohort as the total nunber of students who
would be eligible for the new program and applied a one-half
full time equivalent. She said in doing so this nmakes the fiscal
note one-half of the previous fiscal note, which calcul ated each
preki ndergarten student as full-tine. The new fiscal note is
anticipated to be $41.826 million.

She noted that the fiscal note also acknow edged the changes in
version | regarding the reference of four-year-olds as opposed
to four- and five-year-olds. She explained that the change in
age does not change the anobunt in the fiscal note, since the
focus is on one cohort.

She continued that in changing and renoving the funding from an
estimate to an actual October count, the departnent's feedback
is that this program funds on "actuals" and she does not know
how close an estimate would be. She recommended that this
program be funded through an actual count. She added that the
fiscal note does not address the facility issue and DEED woul d
not anticipate anything large in the initial year's fiscal note,
if at all.

8:17:39 AM

SENATOR FRENCH asked for confirmation that the foundation
formula pays the sane for children whether they are in
ki ndergarten or 12th grade.

V5. NUDELMAN replied yes.
SENATOR FRENCH asked if DEED has done any research into whether
the costs are actually the sane for each grade or if that is the

way the departnent divides out the anmount of noney to be spent.

M5. NUDELMAN replied that's the way the departnent divides out
the noney it spends. She explained that the departnent has not
specifically studied the differences.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- April 8, 2011



SENATOR FRENCH said the reason he raises this question is that
while he would Iike to leave the fiscal note small, he wants to
have a quality prekindergarten program which mght cost nore
He asked her to look into this over the interim

SENATOR DAVI S said the kindergarten program can be | ooked at as
a good nodel where the funding fornmula is working. She
reiterated that the previous fiscal note was highly inflated
because four- and five-year-olds were both included. She asked
for confirmation that the departnent sinply cut the fiscal note
in half.

V5. NUDELMAN replied yes.

SENATOR DAVI S asked for confirmation that the fiscal note is now
$41 mllion.

M5. NUDELMAN replied yes.

SENATOR DAVIS said she is disappointed that the commttee has
received no input from DEED with regard to the bill, except
about the fiscal note. She said that with such an inportant
topic, it would be expected that there be sonme response fromthe
departnment. She stressed that the legislature is responsible for
provi ding education for Alaska's children and needs to conme up
with a programthat will work. She noted that this bill does not
force schools to have a prekindergarten program but there are a
| ot of schools that do want it. She said that she is going to do
everything that she can to get the nessage out to the public in
order to get input on it. She opined that the volunteer prograns
and the pilot programdon't neet the needs of all of the state's
st udent s.

8.22:41 AM

CO- CHAIR THOVAS said he wunderstands it is difficult for the
departnment to take a position when the governor has not nade his
position clear.

SENATOR DAVI S took issue with that.

COCHAIR THOVAS said that with regard to noving forward, the
coonmittee has had sonme discussions with the Alaska Early
Chi | dhood Coordinating Council and wll schedule sone neetings
in the fall to help put together a nore structured plan for next
sessi on.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- April 8, 2011



CO CHAIR MEYER added that the committee did wite a letter to
the council requesting that it give sonme formal presentations to
the conmttee during the interim on prekindergarten. He said
hopefully the council will also ook at SB 6. There are a | ot of
good things going on in the pre-K area, however there doesn't
appear to be a central <coordinating effort to help the
| egislature efficiently provide prekindergarten. He said SB 6
goes a long way in doing just this.

CO-CHAIR THOMAS concurred. He announced he would hold SB 6 in
comm ttee.

PRESENTATI ON:  FI SHER REPORT - UNI VERSI TY OF ALASKA

8:24:52 AM

CO CHAI R THOVAS announced that the next order of business would
be to hear a presentation fromthe University of Al aska (UA) on
t he Fi sher Report.

8.25:21 AM

VENDY REDMAN, Executive Vice President, University Relations,
University of Alaska, brought the commttee's attention to a
Power Point Presentation titled, Fisher Report UA Institutional
Review [presentation included in the docunent packet]. She
expl ained that the University of Alaska' s president, Pat Ganbl e,
with support from the Rasmuson Foundation, conm ssioned a
consultant to do a broad review of the UA system The purpose of
the report was:

1. To assist the president of the Board of Regents in assessing
the overall condition of the UA system

2. To advice on the attitudes of the university and the system
constituenci es.

3. To candidly identify and address issues and opportunities
affecting the UA system

4. To recommend a tentative agenda for the future, which could
be used in strategic planning.

She explained that President Ganble cane in during a tinme when
the UA's strategic plan had just ended and he wanted sonme "new
eyes" on the issues that the university is facing. Dr. Fisher
and a group of five additional individuals cane for six days and
nmet with several hundred people. She said that there are things
in the report that nmake everyone happy and other things that
make every constituency unhappy.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- April 8, 2011



She said Dr. Fisher identified five of the nost significant
chal l enges the university system will face over the course of
t he next year.

She began with the first significant chall enge:

How nuch should the UAA canpus be developed in size
and prograns and to what extent mght (should) this
occur at the expense of UAF?

She explained that this challenge inpacts many other issues at
the university currently and is an issue that many states are
facing. At this point UA is trying to work carefully with the
canpuses in order to clarify what the mssions of each canpus
are and have the Board of Regents be able to distinctly identify
different institutional goals.

She said that sone of the specific recomendations that fell

under this cat egory i ncl uded program speci al i zati on
(particularly at the graduate level); graduate program size;
that UAA's research should focus on social, behavioral, and

education; that UAF' s research should focus on science and
engi neering; program coll aboration; and enhanced E-I|earning and
di stance educati on.

8:32: 52 AM
M5. REDMVAN continued with the second significant chall enge:

How can the University of Al aska further inprove its
performance in critical areas such as student
retention, st udent graduati on, and externally
recogni zed academ c quality?

She noted that this is where the Fisher Report overlapped wth
t he Hi gher Education/Career Readi ness Task Force. She expl ai ned
that these are the issues that President Ganble has recognized
as the nost inportant for himat this point. The novenent of the
K-12 systemto neasure the outconme of schools is now com ng back
to the universities, she added. She explained that while there
are majors that are part of a professional program which can be
nmeasured, with general education and liberal art students these
measurenents don't exist.

She noted that UA's retention rates in Al aska are the |lowest in
the nation. There are a lot of reasons for that, one of which is
the way the system is organized, with nmany of the comunity
coll eges and universities conbined. She explained that when the

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- April 8, 2011



community colleges and universities are "teased apart” the UA
system ranks about average in the nation. "Wich isn't very
good..in this country right now, in ternms of student retention
and graduation,” she said. One of the recomendations from the
report was how to determine retention and graduation rates. She
expl ained that because students attending community canpuses
have different goals (their goal is not to graduate and get a
degree), these individuals should not be included in that count.
After a research study done by UA a few years ago to track
students who had left UAA, it was found that when individuals
were asked why they left, the overwhel mng answer was: "we got
what we cane for."

She added that the national data is based on five-year
graduation rates. However, when looking at the 10-year
graduation rate for UAA the wuniversity is suddenly at the
national norm She explained that this my correlate with the
hi gh enpl oyment rate of Al aska, because when people are working
they aren't in school. She added that 80 percent of UAA' s
students go to school part-time and it takes |onger to graduate.

8:37:16 AM

CO CHAI R THOVAS asked for confirmation that anyone who takes a
class at the university could be considered a drop out, sinply
because they don't conplete their education.

M5. REDMAN replied that on the national data students have to
state that they are at the wuniversity in order to obtain a
specific degree. She explained that this nmeans that even if a
student has not been accepted into a specific degree program
they are included in the data for <conpletion or lack of
conpl eti on.

CO CHAIR THOVAS asked for confirmation that an individual who
takes one class at a conmunity college would not be considered a
"failure."

M5. REDVAN replied no, not right now

She said on the national |evel there are three groups working on
the issue of conpletion for college students including Conpete
to Conplete. She noted that there is going to be a |ot of focus
on this in the next few years. She noted that the university can
no longer "point the finger" at schools for the unpreparedness
of students. It is inportant to work with schools in order to
figure out what areas the university and [K-12] schools need to
hel p enhance a student's ability to be successful in college.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 9- April 8, 2011



She provided the conmittee with sone current prograns that work
very effectively, including the sunmer academi es and pre-college
experiences. She noted that in the last three years these K-12
sutmer  institutes have had a high priority wthin the
university's budget request. She added that participation wth
Boy Scouts, Grl Scouts, and Youth G oups are high predictors of
success in coll ege.

She continued that there has been work internally to make sure
that barriers have been taken down within the university, such
as transferability and high-quality advising. She added that the
university can nake advising mandatory for the Alaska Schol ars
and the new scholars comng in with [the Al aska Performance
Schol ar shi p] program which wll greatly enhance these
i ndi vi dual s' success.

8:40: 46 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked what can be done to advertise UA's
gqualities to students around the nation.

M5. REDVMAN replied that marketing can be very expensive, which
has neant that not a |lot has been done in the past few years.
She explained that the University of Al aska Sout heast (UAS) uses
targeted marketing in outdoor magazines and UAF and UAA did a
joint recruiting trip this year in Wshington and California.
She added that the wuniversity system is trying to be very
i nnovative and focused in its undergraduate recruitnent.

SENATOR FRENCH said that Alaska provides unique outdoor
opportunities and this strength should be capitalized on.

M5. REDMVAN conmented that this has been very successful.

SENATOR FRENCH noted that he was not aware that UAS was
advertising in outdoor nagazi nes.

M5. REDVAN added that UAF has to get past the "cold" aspect and
came up with a series of ads that nake cold | ook fun

8:43:12 AM

SENATOR DAVIS asked if there have been any studies on the
success (or not success) of nmerging the conmmunity colleges with
the three main canpuses and what student retention was |ike
prior to this nerge versus now.

M5. REDVAN replied that she was the vice chancellor of the
community <college division when it was nerged wth the

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -10- April 8, 2011



uni versity canpuses. She added that she did not believe it was a
good idea at the tine. However, at this point, to go backwards
is not realistic, she opined. Anchorage has tried to segregate
and present different doorways for students who are |ess
prepared for college. Fairbanks has noved in the other direction
and have higher university entry standards. She explained that
for UAF this was easier because its community coll ege canpus was
not "sharing real estate;"” this is not the case for UAA

She added that community colleges around the state would
probably state that the current system is preferable. For
students, it has probably been better because there are no
transfer issues. However, every new president that she has
worked with has cone to her at sone point and noted that it was
not a good idea to nerge these two together. She reiterated
that, at this point, it would be too difficult to separate the
t wo.

8:47:19 AM
She continued with significant challenge 3:

How can the University of Al aska prepare for a future
that plausibly could involve dimnished oil tax
revenues, i ncreased enphasi s upon non- petr ol eum
sources of economc activity, and gradually rising
average annual tenperatures?

She noted that she is unclear what "gradually rising average
annual tenperatures” neans, however, Dr. Fisher would not take
it out.

She added that, in general, challenge three is the overriding
issue that UAis facing internally.

CO- CHAIR MEYER said that he too is not sure what the gradually
rising average tenperatures neans. However, he agreed that the
di minishing oil noney is an issue. He asked what is being done
to prepare for the day when that noney runs out and whether sone
of the land that was set aside for the university could be used
as a source of funding by either selling or leasing it out. He
added that he is aware that UA' s al ummi donations are very | ow.

CO- CHAIR THOVAS noted that President Ganble was previously the
president of the [Alaska Railroad Corporation], which has a fare
amount of incone that cones from real estate. He said that he
woul d i kely have sone insight as to how that operations works.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -11- April 8, 2011



M5. REDVAN replied that the 250,000 acres given to UA was taken
back by the Al aska Suprene Court, which stated that it basically
constituted an appropriation. She explained that after two years
of attenpting to get this land back, it was decided that the
university should wait until there was a new and nore
"favorabl e" [Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR)] to work
with. She noted that the commtnent for this land does stil
exi st.

She said that the university is making a lot of nobney on the
land that it currently has (about 140,000 acres) and funds the
UA schol ars' programw th this noney.

CO CHAIR MEYER asked for clarification that she is discussing
t he Al aska Departnent of Natural Resources.

MS. REDVAN replied yes.
CO CHAI R MEYER asked "do we have that now?"
M5. REDMVAN [ shook her head, no.]

CO CHAIR MEYER said the legislature spent a lot of tinme on that
| and. He said he thought that it had been worked out.

M5. REDVMAN said "so did |." However, the wuniversity had to
relitigate the entire thing back through the I|egislature, where
it never |left the House Resources Comm ttee.

She added that there has been renewed energy on fund raising.
She explained that UA's alumi fundraising is very |ow
nationally and there is a lot of room for inprovenent. Private
philanthropy in Alaska is also very low nationally. This is a
difficult state and there are a lot of challenges to overcone.
She said that part of the challenge is being net by the
university's own work of teaching students about what it neans
to give back and be philanthropists thenselves. This has begun
wi th students who are recipients of scholarships and encouragi ng
them to give back once they are enployed. She said "we need to
build that into their psyche.”

She said with regard to the future, a flat budget is assumed for
the university, which could be the best case scenario. For UA
this nmeans reallocating a lot of internal resources and not
starting any new prograns.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -12- April 8, 2011



She said that UA is doing a program review of the system
adm ni stration. She added that the Mac Taggart Report for the
University of Alaska is another consultant report which focused
specifically on statewide admnistration. There are a |lot of
groups that are working on the financial and risk managenent of
the wuniversity and other "backroont functions that keep the
uni versity noving between canpuses and the system | evel.

[ CO-CHAI R THOVAS turned the gavel over to Co-Chair Meyer.]

8:55:50 AM
M5. REDVAN continued with the fourth significant chall enge:

How can the University of Al aska be organized in order
to reduce its costs and increase its perfornmance?

She said the proposal to add a common core curricul um has caused
some consternation anong campuses. Many people in the public are
surprised to find that the university does not have this. There
is alot of internal conversation regarding this topic and while
it is not a big noney saver it would be good for students, she
opi ned.

She noted that the elimnation of ineffective and |ow enroll nment
progranms is done every ten years, however, this needs to be done
on a nore regul ar basis.

8:57. 03 AM
M5. REDVAN continued with the fifth significant chall enge:

President Ganble nust develop and endorse a nodel
whi ch sharpens the mnmission(s), generates support and
reduces costs.

She explained that President Ganble is currently working on
devel oping a strategic plan which acknow edges the reality of
the resource situation in the state, in order to reallocate and
coll aborate internally to neet the needs Al aska has. She noted
that this is a large challenge wthout any new general fund
nmoney. Any funding allocations for the university's growth wl
have to conme internally.

CO CHAIR MEYER said it appears that the system nay be a bit top-
heavy. He said that at sonme point he would like to understand
what it takes to become a Division |I school; he noted that in
order to attract students, nmany |li ke the prestige of this |abel.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -13- April 8, 2011



He said that this would conclude the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neetings for the session. He remnded the conmttee
that, because the legislature is in the 24 hour notice, that the
co-chairs reserve the right to call nenbers back

9:00: 27 AM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Co- Chair Meyer adjourned the neeting at 9:00 a. m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -14- April 8, 2011



